
 

Council Chambers A/V Upgrades RFP 

Q&A 

Q1 – Is the intent to add new power/cabling at floor or wall? 
A1 – New power/cabling/conduit should be located in walls, millwork and/or ceiling locations.  
Not intended to trench concrete for new power/data locations. 
 
Q2 – What type of content is expected to be displayed on monitors? 
A2 – Spreadsheets, maps, documents with text and typical content associated with court and 
city council meetings. 
 
Q3 – Are alternates allowable? 
A3 – The vendors may suggest alternate solutions to the information/diagram provided in the 
RFP document. 
 
Q4 – Can devices be wireless? 
A4 – Yes 
 
Q5 – Is an assisted listening system (ALS) required? 
A5 - Yes 
 
Q6 – Where will Zoom or remote calls be controlled? 
A6 – Remote calls should be controlled at the city clerk seat at the dais. 
 
Q7 – Is cable tv required? 
A7 - No 
 
Q8 – Is meeting recording required? 
A8 - Yes 
 
Q9 – What is maximum number of attendees? 
A9 – Seating shown on provided floor plan diagram. 
 
Q10 – Can existing conduit be reused? 
A10 - Yes 
 
Q11 – Will there be interruptions in AV installation for city meetings/events? 
A11 – No, city will provide a schedule of events to coordinate AV installation around events, or 
will reschedule events to avoid interruptions. 
 



Q12 – Is the city council space considered historical? 
A12 – No 
 
Q13 – Is there a completion date required? 
A13 – No, please provide a proposed completion schedule in your response. 
 
Q14 – Are existing building drawings available? 
A14 – Yes, included in this addendum. 
 
Q15 – What is required monitor size at dais? 
A15 – Existing monitor size, or slightly larger is acceptable.  Monitor to have stand (not attached 
to dais). 
 
Q16 – Should existing ceiling speakers be replaced? 
A16 – Speakers are intended to be replaced.  Deduct alternate is acceptable if existing speakers 
are evaluated and found to be in good working condition. 
 
Q17 – Is an interactive smart monitor required? 
A17 – No, interactive monitor is not intended. 
 
Q18 – What is the source of video input? 
A18 – Typically a flash drive with a video file. 
 
Q19 – Are ceiling tiles available in attic stock? 
A19 – Yes, a limited number of attic stock ceiling tiles are available. 
 
Q20 – Does the city have an IT staff member on-site? 
A20 – No, AV system should be easily controlled by users. 
 
Q21 – Is there an establish budget? 
A21 – No. 
 
Q22 – Can the rear wall displays be increased in size and eliminate the side displays? 
A22 – Yes, city is open to alternates. 
 
Q23 – Should lighting be controlled by AV system? 
A23 – No, existing lighting controls (switches) to remain. 
 
Q24 – Is AV required in attorney rooms within city council room? 
A24 – No. 
 
Q25 – What is the city’s fiscal year? 
A25 – July 1 – June 30. 
 
Q26 – What is anticipated award schedule? 
A26 – Selection within 90 days. 
 



Q27 - In the PROPOSAL RESPONSE DATE AND LOCATION section, it states ‘One (1) original and 
seven (4) copies of the proposal must be submitted to allow for evaluation.’ Should it be Seven 
or Four copies? 
A27 – Provide 1 original and 4 copies. 
 
Q28 - Is the Contractor Affidavit form what you need completed for # 11. Completed E-Verify 
Form indicating compliance with federal and state requirements? Or is this a different form? 
A28 – Please complete attached E-Verify Form 
 
Q29 - Are the cameras requested for the web conference calls only?  
A29 – Cameras are for recording the meeting and web conference calls. 
 
Q30 - Do you desire to record the sessions?  Do you stream the sessions out to your website or 
Facebook etc? 
A30 – Will record sessions and stream or post content to website. 
 
Q31 - Do you use the partitioned space in the back between the two offices?  Does it have any 
audio or video needs when the partition is closed? 
A31 – No, this space is rarely partitioned off and does not require any AV. 
 
Q32 - Do you close off the DAIS area with its partition?  Is so, do we need audio, video and 
control in the partitioned off main area? 
A32 – Dais is rarely partitioned off from main area, and has been discussed to remove the 
operable partition entirely in the future. 
 
Q33 - Are there any requirements for a voting system at the DAIS seats? 
A33 – No. 
 
Q34 - Are all displays and DAIS monitors going to be showing the same video signal, or do we 
need to split them up? (i.e. public monitors vs DAIS monitors) 
A34 – All public displays to show the same content.  Dais monitors may have the option to show 
different content, but not required. 
 
Q35 - Do you desire the new AV equipment to be in a furniture-grade rack in the same location 
as it is now?  The new system will not be able to fit in that existing cabinet.  Or is there another 
preferred location? 
A35 – Provide furniture-grade rack in the same location. 
 
Q36 - If displays are going to be wall mounted, what type of material is the wall made of?  
 A36 – See attached existing building drawings that show building construction. 
  
Q37 - Is there power located where the display(s) will be placed?  
A37 – No, intent is for your proposal to add power where required if not already available. 
  
Q38 - Is there a network drop located where the display will need to be placed? Or will you be 
utilizing Wi-Fi connection instead?  



A38 – Your proposal may provide a network drop where required or utilize a wireless 
connection. 
   
Q39 - Do you already have licenses for the conferencing platform you are utilizing (Zoom, 
Teams, or others)? If so, which one(s) do you use?  
 A39 – Yes, Zoom is utilized. 
 
Q40 - Is it your preference to have mics located on the table or in ceiling (drop ceiling required if 
so)? Or can mics be mounted to the walls since ceilings are 15’ in height in the City of Oxford 
Courtroom? 
A40 – Wireless mics so that they can be utilized at podiums or tables. 
 
Q41 - 2x2 Window Matrix – In the section regarding remote participants, it mentions a “2x2 
window matrix” for video presentation input. Just to clarify, platforms like Zoom or Teams 
typically adjust the video layout dynamically based on the number of participants and who is 
speaking. A constant 2x2 matrix (i.e., four participants always shown on screen simultaneously) 
would generally require separate streams or an advanced system to maintain that layout. Are 
you requesting a static 2x2 layout, or will the system support standard video conferencing with 
dynamic participant views? If a fixed layout is required, we’ll design around this by utilizing 
multiple concurrent Zoom/Teams feeds. 
A41 – 2x2 window matrix is not required. 
 
Q42 - Ceiling Array Microphone – The RFP specifies a “ceiling array microphone,” and I would 
like to clarify which areas you intend to capture audio from. Are these microphones intended 
for audience sound capture, for the dais, the podium, or the front tables? Understanding this 
will help us with the proper placement and integration into the overall system design. 
A42 – intention is for Zoom/remote participants to hear sound from the dais, podiums, tables 
and the audience. It may be that all but the audience is already captured with microphones. 
 
Q43 - Ceiling Height and Room Dimensions – Could you also provide the ceiling height and room 
dimensions? These details are crucial for accurately specifying and calibrating the ceiling array 
microphones, ensuring optimal audio capture and system performance. 
A43 – See attached building drawings. 
 























Contractor Affidavit under O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(b)(1) 
 
 By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-
10-91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation which is engaged in the physical 
performance of services on behalf of the City of Oxford has registered with, is authorized to use and 
uses the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent 
replacement program, in accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in 
O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91.  Furthermore, the undersigned contractor will continue to use the federal work 
authorization program throughout the contract period and the undersigned contractor will contract 
for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such contract only with subcontractors who 
present an affidavit to the contractor with the information required by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(b).  
Contractor hereby attests that its federal work authorization user identification number and date of 
authorization are as follows:  
 
Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number 
 
 
Date of Authorization  
 
 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Name of Project  
City Council Chambers A/V Upgrades 
 
Name of Public Employer  
City of Oxford, Georgia  

 

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on __________________ in ______________________, _________________. 
              DATE  CITY   STATE 
 
_________________________________     
Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 
_______________________________    
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent  

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME  
ON THIS THE ______ DAY OF _______________________,202____. 
 
_________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_________________________________ 
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